London Borough of Islington

Planning Sub Committee A - 18 July 2016

Minutes of the meeting of the Planning Sub Committee A held at Committee Room 4, Town Hall, Upper Street, N1 2UD on 18 July 2016 at 7.30 pm.

Present: Councillors: Martin Klute (Chair), Tim Nicholls (Vice-Chair), Paul

Convery, Una O'Halloran and David Poyser

Also Councillors: Jilani Chowdhury, Claudia Webbe and Rowena

Present: Champion

Councillor Martin Klute in the Chair

188 INTRODUCTIONS (Item A1)

Councillor Klute welcomed everyone to the meeting. Members of the Committee and officers introduced themselves and the Chair outlined the procedures for the meeting.

189 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Item A2)

There were no apologies for absence.

190 DECLARATIONS OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (Item A3)

There were no substitute members.

191 <u>DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Item A4)</u>

There were no declarations of interest.

192 ORDER OF BUSINESS (Item A5)

The order of business would be B4, B3, B6, B5, B1, B2, B7, B8.

193 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Item A6)

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 7 June 2016 be confirmed as an accurate record of proceedings and the Chair be authorised to sign them.

194 (LAND LOCATED BETWEEN ST JOHN STREET AND WHISKIN STREET) ST JOHN STREET, LONDON, EC1 (Item B1)

Single panel – 6 Sheet Advertisement Display Freestanding Internally Illuminated Panel

(Planning application number: P2016/0448/ADV)

In the discussion the following point was made:

• The location of the panel was considered.

RESOLVED:

That planning permission be granted subject to the conditions and informative set out in Appendix 1 of the officer report.

Planning Sub Committee A - 18 July 2016

195 (LAND ON WEST SIDE OUTSIDE FINSBURY LIBRARY) ST JOHN STREET, LONDON, EC1V 4NB (Item B2)

Single panel – 6 Sheet Advertisement Display Freestanding Internally Illuminated Panel

(Planning application number: P2016/0450/ADV)

In the discussion the following point was made:

• The location of the panel was considered.

RESOLVED:

That planning permission be granted subject to the conditions and informative set out in Appendix 1 of the officer report.

196 45 ARLINGTON SQUARE, LONDON, N1 7DT (Item B3)

The construction of a basement underneath the rear garden (as amended), together with an additional linking staircase from the lower ground to the new basement level. The conversion of existing vaults into a utility room and wc.

(Planning applications: P2015/3235/FUL and P2015/3383/LBC)

In the discussion the following points were made:

- The planning officer advised that the basement policy had been introduced since the application was received. At the time of validation a Structural Method Statement was not required but a condition should be added to require one now that the basement policy was in place. Adjoining residents should be consulted on this and the statement would have to be agreed prior to construction.
- The quality of habitable space was considered.
- The basement would meet the policies of having at least 1 metre of soil on top of the basement construction and the basement not being below more than half of the garden.

RESOLVED:

That planning permission and listed building consent be granted subject to the conditions and informative set out in Appendix 1 of the case officer report with the additional condition regarding a Structural Method Statement outlined above.

197 BARNARD PARK, COPENHAGEN STREET, ISLINGTON, LONDON, N1 0NL (Item B4) Refurbishment of past side of Barnard Park including improvements to football nitch

Refurbishment of east side of Barnard Park including improvements to football pitch, planting, turfed areas and re-design and layout of pathways.

(Planning application number: 2016/1109/FUL)

In the discussion the following points were made:

- The planning officer advised that Sport England had objected to the application so if the sub-committee decided to grant the application, it would be put forward to the Secretary of State to determine if it should be called in.
- Concern was raised that if the village green area was not included in the calculations, there would be a 70% reduction in sports provision in the park.
- The planning officer advised that the sports pitch and village green had both been included in the 36% reduction in overall sports provision in the park figure included in the officer report. Informal sports would take place on the village green.
- The committee did not agree with the view that the village green could be held to be a sports facility for the purposes of assessing the loss of existing sports facilities.

Planning Sub Committee A - 18 July 2016

- The planning officer advised that the proposed pitch would be of a higher quality than the existing one and the overall the park's facilities would be improved.
- Extensive consultation had taken place with park users, community groups and young people.
- The applicant advised that the design of the park had been led by consultation.
- The Football Association had submitted a letter suggesting they might be interested in investing in a full sized pitch. The applicant raised concern that a full sized pitch would be dominant in the park and the consultation was in favour of having a less dominant pitch.
- Concern was raised that the village green would not be used much for informal sports if it was also been used for leisure e.g. picnics.
- A member stated that the current pitch at 8,990 sqm was larger than a full sized pitch of 7,140 sqm so reducing it to a full sized pitch would reduce its dominance. Alternatively other sized pitches could be considered. It was suggested that, in line with the advice contained in the letter of objection from Sport England, a 9 a side pitch would be of most use to local schools.
- Concern was raised that the Cally pitch located 0.2 miles away was closed and there were no plans to upgrade it.

Councillor Poyser proposed a motion to defer consideration of the application to enable more consideration to be given to different size football pitches - based on Sport England comments on pitch sizes, and the balance of sports and leisure use. This was seconded by Councillor Nicholls and carried.

RESOLVED:

That consideration of the planning application be deferred for the reasons outlined above.

198 <u>CLARENDON BUILDINGS, 25-27 HORSELL ROAD AND 11 RONALDS ROAD, LONDON, N5 1XL (Item B5)</u>

Internal reconfiguration of the existing floorspace, and construction of rear extension at basement, ground and first floor levels to comprise office (B1 Use Class), conversion of second floor to residential and additional floor of residential within existing roof profile. The building will contain B1 office space at basement, ground and first floor levels, with 7 residential units (C3 Use Class) over upper floors.

(Planning application number: P2015/1655/FUL)

In the discussion the following points were made:

- The planning officer confirmed that the applicant had agreed to pay the full £350,000 affordable housing contribution and not £300,000 as stated in Recommendation A of the officer report.
- The planning officer advised that there was no requirement for the provision of affordable workspace as this was a minor application for a refurbishment and not a rebuild.
- The application was policy compliant.
- Small businesses would use the space.

RESOLVED:

That planning permission be granted subject to the conditions and informatives set out in Appendix 1 of the officer report and subject to the prior completion of a Deed of Planning Obligation made under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 securing the heads of terms as set out in Appendix 1 of the officer report.

Planning Sub Committee A - 18 July 2016

199 GARAGES - QUEMERFORD ROAD, LONDON, N7 9SG (Item B6)

Demolition of three existing garages and excavation works for the construction of a ground floor over basement two-bedroom residential dwelling with green roof.

(Planning application number: P2016/0840/FUL)

In the discussion the following points were made:

- The Structural Methods Statement was listed as an approved document.
- The materials to be used were discussed. The building would be of a brick construction with glazing and timber doors.
- The design of the building was considered.
- A member raised concern that the house would be behind a wall and the wall would be higher than the existing wall.

RESOLVED:

That planning permission be granted subject to the conditions and informatives and the legal agreement set out in Appendix 1 of the officer report.

200 PAVEMENT ON THE EAST SIDE OF ESSEX ROAD (CLOSE TO JUNCTION WITH NEW NORTH ROAD), ESSEX ROAD, LONDON, N1 3AP (Item B7)

Installation of Free Standing Internally Illuminated Advertisement Display Panel (6 sheet) on pavement on the east side of Essex Road close to the junction with New North Road.

(Planning application number: P2015/4873/ADV)

In the discussion the following point was made:

• The location of the panel was considered.

RESOLVED:

That planning permission be granted subject to the conditions and informative set out in Appendix 1 of the officer report.

201 RAILWAY BRIDGE EAST OF 233 SEVEN SISTERS ROAD, LONDON, N4 2HY (Item B8) Public art work to the Railway Bridge.

(Planning application numbers: P2016/2039/FUL and P2016/2040/ADV)

RESOLVED:

That planning permission and advertisement consent be granted subject to the conditions and informative set out in Appendix 1 of the officer report.

The meeting ended at 10.15 pm

CHAIR